Public Document Pack

Children, Education and
Skills Sub Committee
Wednesday, 10 November 2021
To be held on Thursday, 18 November 2021 in 0.02, Council Chamber, East Quadrant,
The Silverlink North, Cobalt Business Park, North Tyneside, NE27 0BY commencing at
6.00 pm (Due to Covid precautions, members of the public wishing to attend should
notify the contact officer by emailing: democraticsupport@northtyneside.gov.uk)
Agenda
Item
1.

Page

Apologies for absence
To receive apologies for absence from the meeting.

2.

Appointment of substitutes
To be informed of the appointment of any substitute members for
the meeting.

3.

To receive any declarations of interest
You are invited to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable
interests in matters appearing on the agenda, and the nature of that
interest.
You are also requested to complete the Declarations of Interests card
available at the meeting and return it to the Democratic Services Officer
before leaving the meeting.
You are also invited to disclose any dispensation from the requirement
to declare any registerable and/or non-registerable interests that have
been granted to you in respect of any matters appearing on the agenda

4.

Minutes

5 - 12

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 9 September 2021
5.

Overview of the impact of Covid in Schools from September 2021

13 - 20

To receive an update on the impact of Covid in Schools from
September 2021
Members of the public are entitled to attend this meeting and receive information about it.
North Tyneside Council wants to make it easier for you to get hold of the information you need.
We are able to provide our documents in alternative formats including Braille, audiotape, large
print and alternative languages.

Agenda
Item

6.

Page

Support for Children with Special Needs and Disability during the
Covid-19 pandemic

21 - 30

To provide members of the Sub-Committee with an overview of the
support for children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities
(SEND) in the Covid-19 pandemic, funding to schools for support for
children with SEND and data on SEND support, children’s attendance
and exclusion data
Circulation overleaf …

Members of the Children, Education and Skills Sub Committee
Councillor Joanne Cassidy
Councillor Chris Johnston
Councillor Pam McIntyre
Councillor Andy Newman
Councillor Erin Parker-Leonard
Councillor Matthew Thirlaway (Chair)
Mr Stephen Fallon
Rev Michael Vine

Councillor Hannah Johnson (Deputy Chair)
Councillor Maureen Madden
Councillor Jim Montague
Councillor Pat Oliver
Councillor Steven Phillips
Councillor Matt Wilson

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4
Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee
9 September 2021

Present:

Councillor M Thirlaway (Chair)
Councillor J Cassidy, HP Johnson, C Johnston, M Madden,
J Montague, S Phillips and M Wilson.
Rev M Vine - Church Representative
Apologies: Councillors P Oliver and E Parker-Leonard

CES9/21

Substitute Members

There were no substitute members

CES10/21

Declarations of Interest

Councillor M Madden declared a registerable personal interest in Item 7 Poverty Intervention
Fund as she is a member of the Wallsend Memorial Hall and a Director of the People’s Advice
Service.

CES11/21

Minutes

Resolved that the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8 July 2021 be confirmed and
signed by the Chair.

CES12/21

Children’s Readiness for School Response Report and Action Plan

The recommendations of the Children, Education and Skills Sub-Group had been accepted
by Cabinet and the Action Plan set out in Appendix 1 had been approved by Cabinet on 6
April 2021.
The Committee considered an update on the Action Plan and in the course of discussion
raised the following points:

-

The Action Plan proposed that further communication was undertaken with early
years providers and settings to ensure the respective Early Help Assessment and
early years funding and resources processes and requirements were understood.
The Early Years Manager now attended the Early Years and Primary Network
meetings, working with the school improvement team to ensure that early year’s
providers and schools have up to date information and guidance around any new
training available or changes to legislation. This has also helped to improve the

Page 5

Children, Education and Skills Sub-committee

communication systems from the local authority to schools and private nurseries,
whilst providing a networking opportunity for schools and early years settings to
access peer support.
A question was raised regarding take up and it was confirmed that there had been an
increase in Early Help Assessments from partners during the lockdowns and that debt
was an issue for parents and a clothing and foodbank had been set up in the
Riverside Centre.
-

It was noted that across Children’s Services there had been a significant increase in
demand due to the impact of poverty, debt, neglect, family breakdown, mental health
issues and substance misuse and this was reflected in the child protection statistics
and an increase in the complexity of cases.

-

Pilot sessions were to be mainstreamed on both the Ready For School (RFS) and
Children’s Centre Facebook pages, with the option to join virtual group sessions or face
to face options, dependent on Covid restrictions.
Parenting sessions were to be offered to all new parents attending the Ready for
School Centre on a rolling basis.
These sessions were also now available to any parent or professional via the
Children’s Centre and RFS face book pages. The 0-19 team also had access to the
modules and could use them with families, to enable a consistent approach.
It was confirmed that attendance at these sessions had increased.

-

Reference was made to the external evaluation of the Ready for School offer which
had begun in partnership with St John’s University in York and would help inform the
further development of the offer across the Borough.
It was noted that once completed the evaluation could be shared with the SubCommittee at the end of 2022.

The Chair thanked the Senior Manager Prevention and Early Help for the informative update
and for attendance at the meeting.

CES13/21

Education Update – Covid Recovery

The Sub-Committee considered a report on the academic year 2020/2021, the work of Local
Authority Officers in their support of schools, and the impact seen in pupils’ attainment and
wellbeing because of Covid.
The academic year 2020/2021 was beset by further disruption to pupils’ education, because
of Covid. High rates of outbreak within schools and repeated periods of enforced isolation
led to an extended period of closure in the spring term 2021 which required schools to move
to on-line learning at haste.
Previous periods of lock down and isolation had enabled most schools to hone their
approaches to home learning and ensure that all pupils had access to appropriate devices
and data. The facilitation of regular ‘teach meets’ by Local Authority officers and the support
of the Research School and ‘EdTech demonstrator schools programme ensured good
practice was shared.

Page 6

Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee

Continuing high levels of infection during the summer term, particularly within the 10-14 age
range led to further disruption for pupils. By the time schools began summer holidays over
half were deemed in outbreak.
Despite the challenges that Covid had brought, Local Authority Officers continued to work
with schools to support recovery and to tackle the priorities outlined within the Ambition for
Education document to improve outcomes for all pupils.
The full extent of the impact of two interrupted academic years of education was yet to be
realised.
The report also included an update on Attendance, Transition to another phase of education,
Curriculum and Assessment, Interventions, Ofsted Inspections and Personal Development.
The Sub-Committee discussed the issues raised in the report and in the course of
discussion raised the following points:

-

Members highlighted concerns about how children could catch up with work that had
been covered but had not been understood via online learning.
It was noted that whilst some schools had robust gap analysis systems in place and
had been proactive in assessing pupils’ attainment throughout the pandemic, others
had been less successful in their efforts.
A ‘Different Summer 2020’, primary documents, had been created by North Tyneside
Local Authority Advisers and serving practitioners and were based on National
Curriculum programmes of study for key stages 1 and 2. They were designed to
support subject leaders to plan their curriculum in a more targeted way, by focusing
on those objectives that could be delivered remotely and those that required face to
face teaching for optimum impact. They were provided free to all schools. These were
subsequently extended to include autumn and spring term curriculum plans.
Extremely positive feedback was received by those schools who adopted them, with
teachers reporting that they gave them a clearer understanding of progression in
subjects across year groups and phases. These recovery documents would continue
to be promoted in the autumn term to support transition into the next year group.

-

Catch up funding had been used in a range of ways as schools saw fit. For example,
some did after school booster classes and others did pre-teaching and follow up
sessions. The national tutoring programme had been used by some schools with
mixed responses: for some it had engaged pupils more and others found it restrictive
in what it offered. There had been a similar picture with schools who used the
academic mentor programme, the success of which very much depended on the
quality of the mentor.
Members stated that it had been an unequal pandemic which had affected less
affluent young people who had fewer online devices and IT equipment and further
funding for catch up was required from the Government.

-

Reference was made to ‘TeachMeets’ and it was explained that in September 2020,
the secondary team had produced and shared a detailed paper for Blended Learning.
It drew together best practice internationally and evidence and research to support
the rationale and development of schools own Blended Learning policies and
approaches. This pre-empted subsequent government and Ofsted guidance for
remote learning. Emerging and best practice was shared at ‘TeachMeets’ which were

Page 7

Children, Education and Skills Sub-committee

run by the secondary team. These were virtual sessions where classroom
practitioners shared something which worked well for them and attendees were able
to ask practical and developmental questions. This has developed into a professional
collaborative enquiry group of around 50 teachers from across North Tyneside - a
lively and innovative group, which would continue into the forthcoming academic year.
Members welcomed this innovative approach and noted that ‘TeachMeets’ sessions
were recorded and could be accessed by practitioners via google.
-

To facilitate remote learning, schools were able to access devices for their
disadvantaged pupils, with support from the Local Authority officer team and access
to DfE and locally funded schemes. For example: one High school had devices in
place for every pupil by October 2020 and was able to transition to live learning
seamlessly in January 2021. Educationalists in North Tyneside had embraced the
opportunity to develop their approaches to blended learning and had plans to bring
the best elements of learning in an era of Covid to everyday practice. Google
Classroom to support independent learning had been an impactful development.

-

The mental health pilot project, delivered on the Mental Health First Aid England plan,
had produced some interesting results. Fifteen schools took part in the first tranche of
training for universal mental health awareness training. They completed: audits,
surveys, accessed training to increase their staff understanding of mental health and
created action plans for improvement. Outcomes from the surveys completed by
children and young people, parents and school staff showed; an increase in
awareness of different types of mental health issues, a better understanding of
identifying emerging needs and being able to signpost to appropriate support. Mental
Health Literacy had improved markedly in a 6 month period. In each of the 15 schools
there were 3 or more mental health first aid trained adults and 5 further adults who
had completed mental health awareness training. The schools met at a network
meeting each month facilitated by Local Authority Officers to support and challenge
each other to improve and to share best practice. The second and third cohorts of
schools to complete the project had been identified and would start the process in the
Autumn term 2021.
Members welcomed the mental health pilot project in schools and reference was
made to work on a mental health strategy which would focus on three strands – how
do you take care of yourself, how do you help others emotional wellbeing and we will
take care of you.

The Chair thanked the School Improvement Officer Teaching Learning and Curriculum,
Secondary for the informative report and for attendance at the meeting.

CES14/21

Poverty Intervention Fund Update

The Sub-Committee considered a report on the use and spend of the Poverty Intervention
Fund.
The purpose of the Fund was to help to alleviate the impact of poverty on families and
individuals across North Tyneside with particular emphasis on children, by providing support
to those who needed it.

Page 8

Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee

On 21 September 2020, Cabinet had agreed the first priorities and initiatives for the Fund.
These were to deliver the Fund in a phased approach with the first phase focussed on the
following priorities:
-

for children – focusing on the key impact which living in poverty has in relation to their
experience at school
for older people – focusing on the key impact of not taking up full benefit entitlement
for families with children – focusing on the key impact of not being able to afford the
essentials of clothing for school and food during school holidays (where they do not
have access to free school meals).

The Committee considered an update on progress on the following initiatives in the
2020/2021 financial year:
-

Poverty Proofing the School Day (for children)
benefit advice and support for older residents (for older people)
school appropriate clothing (for families with children)
holiday food (for families with children)
Food for older residents (for older people)

£172,755 had been allocated from the Poverty Intervention Fund for Poverty Proofing the
School Day in order to address the impacts of poverty felt by children and young people at
school.
The Programme was run by Children North East and delivered through schools and sought
to better understand what poverty looks like from a child and young person’s perspective.
Each school involved was fully supported to be able to put in place an action plan to alleviate
this in the school setting and to reduce the stigma and discrimination faced by children who
live in poverty.
Funding the programme through the Poverty Intervention Fund meant that every school in
the borough was able to take part and there was a consistent experience for children and
young people.
Successful outcomes for the programme included more equity of experience, opportunity
and learning outcomes for pupils who live in poverty. Where the programme had been
delivered there had also been improvements in relation to mental health and wellbeing
amongst children and young people. Schools had implemented actions such as free musical
instrument tuition for all pupils, supplying bus passes, alternatives to non-uniform days for
fund-raising, not sending debt letters home with pupils and challenging staff over whether
asking pupils to write about their holidays or presents was appropriate.
Members acknowledged that one of the biggest impacts for schools was a cultural shift. One
school told evaluators that previously, they had done things without ‘necessarily being aware
of what the impact on disadvantaged pupils would be’, but that after the programme, they
‘now considered the impact first’.
The programme would run through all of the 2021/2022 academic year to ensure that no
school was disadvantaged due to the impact of Covid.
£253,845 had been allocated from the Poverty Intervention Fund to support families with the
costs of school clothing – uniform, coats and shoes.

Page 9

Children, Education and Skills Sub-committee

Part of the funding was used to provide £45 directly to families for every pupil in receipt of
free school meals due to low income. This was being provided through a locally managed
scheme where vouchers were provided for parents and carers to be able to purchase the
clothing for school. Vouchers of £20 per pupil had been provided for use at the eight school
uniform suppliers across the borough (for branded uniform items) and vouchers of £25 per
pupil have been provided for use in supermarkets which supply school clothing.
In June 2020 there were 6225 families in receipt of free school meals and this number had
now increased to 7025 families.
Additional access to school clothing over and above the £45 per pupil had also been
provided for families in need via the Community School Clothing Scheme. This was able to
be accessed through schools and work was undertaken with schools to identify those in
need.
£200,000 of the Poverty Intervention Fund was allocated to provide support for families to
meet the costs of food during school holidays. During the October 2020 half term school
holiday a trial saw five providers delivering food and activities to children on free school
meals and through this, over 1,700 meals were delivered either face to face or remotely
through hamper provision. The total cost of this activity was £6,646.
In November 2020, the government announced the COVID Winter Grant which was to
support those most in need by providing support over the winter to children and households
who were experiencing, or at risk of experiencing, poverty, where they were impacted by the
ongoing public health emergency and where alternative sources of assistance might be
unavailable. By using this funding for holiday food, it was possible to redirect the remainder
of the amount originally allocated for this purpose in the Poverty Intervention Fund to extend
the school clothing scheme and also to provide funding for food for older people over winter.
The Government recently announced additional funding to local authorities to provide for
holiday activities via the Holiday Activity Fund. North Tyneside’s allocation of this fund was
£788k. This holiday provision was for children who were entitled to benefits-related free
school meals.
Work was currently underway to develop the model for the delivery of school holiday
activities across North Tyneside in line with the criteria for the Government funding. This
would also contribute to addressing the policy priorities identified for the PIF.
In relation to the Benefit take-up campaign for older residents which was delivered by Age
UK and Citizens Advice, Members asked how the Council would ensure that the
organisations were giving value for money and it was confirmed that quarterly monitoring
meetings were held with the organisations.
Reference was made to families with in work poverty who were struggling but who did not
qualify for free school meals and it was noted that due to pressures on schools in relation to
the pandemic and school lockdowns, the free school meals criteria had been used but going
forward the Council would be working closely with schools who would have the capacity to
identify those additional families in need.
It was agreed to note the contents of the report.
The Chair thanked the Senior Manager Participation, Advocacy and Engagement for the
informative report and for attendance at the meeting.

Page 10

Children, Education and Skills Sub-Committee

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 5

Meeting: Children Education and Skills Sub Committee
Date: 18th November 2021
Title: Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on education
since the start of the new academic year
September 2021
Authors:
Wendy Burke Director of Public Health
Diane Buckle Assistant Director of Education
Service: Public Health and School Improvement
Wards affected: All
1.

Purpose of Report

1.1.

To provide members of the subcommittee with an overview of the impact of the Covid19 pandemic on children and education, including the number of outbreaks from
September 2021 and an update on the vaccination programme in schools.

2.

Introduction
Impact of the COVID-19 Pandemic on Children and Young People

2.1.

As highlighted in the recently published report the ‘Impact of the COVID-19 pandemic
on health and socio-economic inequalities in North Tyneside’, children and young
people have been disproportionately impacted in terms of missed education and social
interaction.

2.2.

Before the COVID-19 pandemic, there was already a significant gap in educational
attainment between children living in deprived areas and their peers within North
Tyneside. Many children experienced digital exclusion and were unable to access
remote learning as families did not have laptops or internet access. The disruption to
school-based learning during the pandemic is thought to have further widened that gap.

Page 13

2.3.

Across the North East, the learning loss for primary school pupils throughout the year
was 2.8 months, which increased to 3.3 months for secondary school pupils. Nationally,
pupils in schools with high take up of free school meals experienced the largest learning
loss, which has likely widened the attainment gap.

2.4.

According to the Children’s Commissioner’s 2020 report Childhood in the Time of
COVID, two in five (40%) children in low-income families had insufficient desk space at
home to undertake their schoolwork during the first national lockdown of the pandemic,
while between 1.14 – 1.78 million children had no access to a computer or tablet.

2.5.

Evidence from Childhood in the time of COVID suggests that, nationally, 70-80% of
parents whose children had an Educational Health and Care Plan (EHCP) said their
mental health had declined and 54% said their physical health had declined during the
pandemic.
National policy changes from September 2021

2.6.

As the Government moved to step 4 of the roadmap in July, a new phase of continued
caution came into operation to manage the risks of COVID-19.

2.7.

Since the beginning of the new academic year in September 2021 the national and
local priority is to protect time in face-to-face education, minimise disruption and ensure
the response to COVID–19 is proportionate to risk to children and young people. The
risk of severe illness in children and young people is low, however in contrast there are
significant harms associated with missed education.

2.8.

Self-isolation guidance changed on 16 August and children below the age of 18 years
and 6 months are not required to self-isolate if they are identified as a close contact of
someone with COVID-19. Close contacts are now advised to take a PCR test but can
remain in school as long as they do not return a positive result or display symptoms.
Operational changes for schools for the new academic year

2.9.

New education guidance was issued to schools with a contingency framework
outlining the principles of outbreak management that education settings must have
in place for the new academic year.

2.10. Education settings are no longer directed to maintain “bubbles” or for staff or pupils
in secondary schools to wear facemasks, but the following control measures are
maintained:
- Ensure good hygiene for everyone.
- Maintain appropriate cleaning regimes.
- Keep occupied spaces well ventilated.
- Follow public health advice on testing, self-isolation and managing confirmed cases
of COVID-19.
2.11. Education settings are no longer responsible for contact tracing for single positive of
COVID-19 cases in their settings, but they must notify the local authority if they reach

Page 14

thresholds for an outbreak and have up to date risk assessments in place, in line with
DfE guidance.
2.12. The definition of an outbreak for different settings is outlined below:
 For special schools, residential/boarding school/holiday camp settings and settings
that operate with 20 or fewer children, pupils, students and staff at any one time:
o 2 or more children, pupil, students and staff who are likely to have mixed
closely test positive for COVID-19 within a 10-day period
 For other settings:
o 10% or more of children, pupils, students or staff (approximately) who are
likely to have mixed closely test positive for COVID-19 within a 10-day period
o 5 children, pupil or staff or more who are likely to have mixed closely test
positive for COVID-19 within a 10-day period
2.13. Lateral flow testing was encouraged for all school staff and for secondary age pupils
before they returned to school in September and it continues to be encouraged twice
weekly.
2.14. Local authorities, Directors of Public Health and Health Protection Teams continue to
be responsible for managing localised outbreaks and providing support and advice to
education and childcare settings.
Infection rates and outbreaks since the start of the new academic year
2.15. Since the beginning of the autumn term there have been a total of 30 outbreaks in North
Tyneside education settings, as notified to the local Outbreak Control Team. Of these
outbreaks 13 were in the Coast locality, 5 in the North West, 2 in Central and 10 in the
South West.
o
o
o
o
o
2.16.

2 in first schools
14 in primary schools
3 in middle schools
7 in secondary schools
4 in special schools

In the same time period last year there were 22 schools in outbreak.

2.17. The number of cases of COVID-19 in children and young people under 19 years is
3,448 compared with 479 same time period last year (data as of end of October 2021)
2.18. As can be seen clearly in Figure 1 the trends show that rates are far higher across all
age groups, compared with the same time last year. At the end of October, the overall
North Tyneside rate was 743 per 100,000 compared with 282 per 100,000 last year.
The rate has started to decline since October half term.
2.19. Figure 2 shows that the 7-day infection rate per 100,000 is far higher across all school
age groups than the borough’s overall rate, compared with the same time period last
year. For the 10-14 age group the rate is 2,573.6 per 100,000 compared with 320.7 per
100,000 last year.

Page 15

Figure 1 : Cases and rates across North Tyneside (all ages)

Figure 2: 7-day infection rate per 100,000

Page 16

2.20. The North Tyneside rates reflect national infection levels which have also been rising
since the end of the summer. There are a few possible interacting factors which may
explain the rise.







The UK started its vaccination programme earlier than many countries and may
now see the effects of vaccine waning. This is the reason for the current booster
programme.
Some vaccines are less effective at presenting the onward transmission of Delta
than other vaccines, though they are still highly effective at preventing serious
disease.
The UK removed all restrictions while some countries have retained some
measures.
The UK began vaccinating school age children later than some other countries.

2.21. Despite the higher number of cases in the 0-19 age group far fewer children have been
impacted and had to miss school due to the changes in self-isolation requirements.
2.22. A small number of schools have had larger outbreaks and have been supported by the
Council’s Outbreak Control Team to manage the outbreak and help the school with
communications to parents. In these instances, parents have been advised to obtain
PCR tests for their children if they are in a year group with many positive cases. Schools
have deep cleaned their premises and health and safety risk assessments have been
reviewed.
Additional short term public health measures from 1 November 2021
2.23. In response to current infection rate the Director of Public Health and Assistant
Director of Education jointly issued some additional short term recommendations prior
to the October half term for all education settings to consider implementing on return
on 1 November, with the aim of reducing the spread of infection, bringing cases down,
and minimising the risk of further disruption to education.
2.24. Recommendations to be implemented from 1 November for all education settings
include:








All adults encouraged to wear a face covering in communal areas
All adults encouraged to participate in twice weekly asymptomatic LFT testing*
All adults and pupils encouraged to follow national guidance if they are a close
contact of a positive case and access a PCR test*
All adults who are a household contact of a positive case and are exempt from
isolation to test daily for 7 days with an LFT (from the date symptoms started or
if asymptomatic from the date the person in the household tested positive)*
Careful consideration given to whether educational visits and residential trips
should go ahead
Consideration be given to whether open days or events could move to a virtual
format
Additional attention given to ventilation, cleaning and respiratory and hand
hygiene

Page 17

In addition to the measures above for secondary school settings the following have also
been recommend:




All pupils encouraged to wear face coverings in both communal areas and
classrooms
All pupils encouraged to participate in twice weekly asymptomatic LFT testing*
All pupils who are a household contact of a positive case and exempt from
isolation to test daily for 10 days with an LFT (from the date symptoms started
or if asymptomatic from the date the person in the household tested positive)*

*Note: People who have tested positive with a PCR test within the last 90 should not be encouraged to test unless they
develop new symptoms

These recommendations will be reviewed on 11 November 2021.

COVID vaccinations in 12–15-year-olds
2.25. The UK’s four chief medical officers agreed in mid-September that Covid-19
vaccinations were to be offered to all 12-to-15-year-olds with an ambitious roll out
programme to be delivered via schools.
2.26. The school-based vaccination programme in North Tyneside is on track:
o 9443 students are eligible
o 71% consent forms returned
o The schools that have been completed to date cover 6610/ 9443 eligible
students
o 3533 students were vaccinated in schools before half term (37.4% uptake)
o Session for home educated students held in half term - 11 students attended
(total number listed by service 69)
o Outstanding schools to be completed in the next 2-3 week
o Mop up sessions will be arranged with schools.
2.27. To increase uptake by 12-15 year olds the NHS national booking service (NBS) is now
available to book a COVID-19 vaccination at a convenient location out of school hours.
Walk in sessions are also available. This means that those who have not yet had the
chance at school, or were unable to have the vaccine at school, can get vaccinated
elsewhere, as quickly as possible.
2.28. All parents with eligible children have been contacted to promote the increased access
in order to increase vaccination uptake.
Conclusion
2.29. COVID-19 remains a highly infectious disease which spreads easily from person to
person. Stage 4 of the Government’s Roadmap eased restrictions for educational
settings and new guidance focused on protecting time in face-to-face education and
minimising disruption.

Page 18

2.30. Despite the higher numbers of cases and outbreaks in schools there has been less
disruption overall to schools and far fewer instances of classes or schools having to
move to remote learning.
2.31. Local Authority Officers from a range of departments will continue to support schools
to prevent and protect the onward transmission of COVID-19, with the expectation that
the rate will peak and will continue to decline.
2.32. The full extent of the impact of two interrupted academic years of education is yet to be
realised, however this is being monitored at both national, regional and local level on
an ongoing basis.
3. Background Information
The following documents have been used in the compilation of this report
Contingency Framework: education and childcare Settings
Schools COVID-19 operational guidance - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk)

Page 19

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Meeting:

Children, Education and Skills Sub Committee

Date:

18 November 2021

Title:

SEND Update – COVID recovery, current picture, and
funding to schools.

Authors:

Kevin Burns – Interim Assistant Director SEND
Lisa Harvey- Interim Assistant Director, Whole Life Disability,
Gateway and Emergency Duty

Service:

Children, Young People and Learning

Wards affected:

All

1. Purpose of Report
1.1 To provide members of the sub-committee with an overview of


the support for children with Special Educational Needs and Disabilities (SEND) in
the Covid-19 pandemic since the last report in November 2020;



funding to schools for support for children with SEND; and



To give an update on data on SEND support, children’s attendance and exclusion
data

2. Context: Our SEND population
2.1 The local authority tracks the levels of young people accessing SEND support through
our schools, as well as those who are supported with an Education, Health and Care
Plan.
2.2 The overall number of children and young people who have the support of an EHCP
continues to rise and North Tyneside remains an outlier in terms of the proportion of our
population who have a plan (figure 1).
2.3 We have also noticed that the number of requests for assessment have not slowed down
during the last 12 months (figure 2). This suggests that we will continue to be an outlier
when compared to national figures (national data tracks January to December and is not
published until around spring). This high rate of children and young people with
identified additional needs puts pressure on our service and those of our partners.

Page 21

Figure 1: The number of
Education, Health and Care
plans maintained by North
Tyneside Council.

Figure 2: The number of new
requests for assessments,
month on month.

2.4 The proportions of our young people at a SEND support level are now more in keeping
with what is seen to be typical and has generally stayed around this level since 2019
(figure 3). This follows a period where the proportion of children and young people at this
level was below what would be seen to be typical. There was a decrease in October
2021, which, it is suggested, is linked to various school closures and ongoing
assessment and identification processes not being progressed.

Figure 3: The number of
children and young people
recorded as SEND Supported
by school overtime.

3. Overview of the support available for children and young people with Special
Needs and Disability since the last report in November 2020
3.1 Access to education
3.1.1

Education in the academic year 2020/2021 has rapidly evolved to meet the
dynamically changing needs of our children and young people. Local authority
officers from a range of departments continued to support schools navigate the

Page 22

plethora of legislation and guidance documentation presented by government. This
has been the same for all identified groups of children and young people. An
additional set of guidance and expectations were made for children and young
people with EHCPs or those who were deemed to be vulnerable - the key difference
being that full attendance was encouraged earlier. Whilst this additional guidance for
children and young people with EHCPs was available, these groups were no less
influenced by outbreaks of Covid-19 and periods of isolation.
3.1.2

The academic year 2020/2021 was beset by further disruption to pupils’ education,
because of Covid-19. High rates of outbreak within schools and repeated periods of
enforced isolation led to an extended period of closure in the spring term 2021. It
required schools to move to online learning swiftly. Whilst schools had developed
better access and content, it is recognised that generally children and young people
with additional needs were challenged by this way of working. However, some were
able to access this way of working very successfully. Early indications are that the
outbreaks and infection rates had no more or less impact on the group of young
people with additional needs.

3.1.3

Continuing high levels of infection during the summer term, particularly within the 10
– 24 age range, led to further disruption for pupils. By the time schools began
summer holidays, more than half were deemed in outbreak. Whilst there is no
evidence that those children and young people who have additional needs were
unduly impacted when compared to their peers, the full extent of the impact of two
interrupted academic years of education on this group is yet to be realised.

3.1.4

Return to school in September has seen continued outbreaks, albeit not at the rate
we saw in the summer term. It is recognised that, whilst not as high profile in the
media, there are still a number of schools and settings managing outbreak and
cases. The changes to legislation and the expectation that children and young
people missing education is a ‘last resort’ has supported generally stronger
attendance we are aware that infection has impacted, locally and nationally, in the
10-24 age range. Given the current higher levels of infections, schools in North
Tyneside have been offered additional guidance from Public Health colleagues to
support them in putting further mitigations in place. One example of this is the advice
to return to the use of face coverings from November.

3.1.5

Despite the challenges that Covid-19 has brought, local authority officers continue to
work with our schools to support recovery and to tackle the priorities outlined within
the Ambition for Education Strategy and the SEND Inclusion Strategy to improve
outcomes for all our pupils and specifically those with additional needs.

3.1.6

The collection of robust data during the pandemic has been made more difficult due
the different expectations on different schools and settings. Whilst we are able to
offer general reflections on the levels of attendance and exclusions, these have been
collated from data sets that were often incomplete over the various lockdowns.

3.2 Children and Young People with Disabilities
3.2.1

The social work teams continued to provide support and assessments throughout the
pandemic and continued to visit if deemed essential. Visits have now returned to
pre-pandemic frequency.

3.2.2

Short breaks for children and young people with disabilities have continued
throughout the pandemic, though we offered reduced numbers of places at the heigh

Page 23

of the pandemic, dependent on risk assessments on clinical vulnerability. Provision
is now back to pre-pandemic levels.
3.2.3

There is currently a waiting list for the overnight short breaks service within North
Tyneside. We also know that there are opportunities to strengthen outreach, play
scheme, and home care provision for children with disabilities. Work is ongoing
between social care and commissioning teams to source provision to meet need.

3.3 Access to other services including those provided by health partners
3.3.1

The authority works in partnership with health partners to understand access that
children and young people with additional needs have to health services. We track
access and share this cross service so that we are more able to understand and
mitigate pressures.

3.3.2

Health colleagues’ key performance indicators are based on average waiting times to
first appointments. Whilst the wait for first appointments have generally been
maintained, albeit with some appointments being manged in a different way (for
example, via technology rather than face to face), there are some aspects of the
services that are experiencing issues beyond the first appointment.

3.3.3

The charts below (figures 4-7) show waiting times for some of the key services linked
to mental health and wellbeing and diagnosis pathways. Whilst the charts do show
some variation, they suggest the waiting times to first appointments have been
maintained within the last 12 months. Our families and young people tell us about
limited access to some professionals during various stages of the pandemic, as
some health staff were moved into frontline duties or direction received by medical
personnel prevented the usual provision from being available.

Figure 4: average wait to first
appointment (orange) to the
access team and the number
of referrals (blue) overtime.

Figure 5: average wait to first
appointment (orange) to the
neurodevelopmental team and
the number of referrals (blue)
overtime.

Page 24

Figure 6: average wait to first
appointment (orange) to the
specialist ADHD team and the
number of referrals (blue)
overtime.

Figure 7: average wait to first
appointment (orange) to the
primary mental health and
wellbeing team and the
number of referrals (blue)
overtime.

4. Funding
4.1 Funding to support children and young people who have additional needs is made
available through the ‘High Needs Block’. There continues to be significant pressure on
the available funds to meet need. The high needs funding block provides local
authorities with resources for place funding and top-up funding for institutions who are
supporting children and young people with SEND. This includes children and young
people accessing education provision in and out of borough; the commissioned services
that offer support to institutions and those that children, young people and their families.
4.2 Funding received by mainstream schools and academies is divided into three elements:


Element 1 Funding - the Age Weighted Pupil Unit (AWPU) – this money pays for
the basic costs for every child in the school, regardless of any additional need.
Every October a school has to fill in an annual census and each child will get the
age weighted pupil allowance funding, which is normally spent by schools on
staffing and premises costs.



Element 2 funding - each child with a SEN Support Plan can be allocated by the
school up to £6,000 per child to support meeting their additional educational
need. How that money is allocated is a decision for each individual school. For
each child in the school with an EHCP the LA recognises that £6,000 as a
contribution towards the cost of the EHCP. This money is known as the ‘Notional
SEN budget’. The notional SEND budget is made up of the following funding
already allocated to the school:
 5% of the age-weighted pupil unit
 Free school meals funding
 Income deprivation affecting children index funding
 The looked after children funding
 Funding for low prior attainment.



Element 3 funding - the High Needs Block – sometimes called the “top up
funding”. This is the money paid by the local authority, in addition to the element
1 and element 2 funding to ‘top up’ the support within the school to meet the
funding needed for individual pupils with an EHCP. Depending on the school and
the child’s individual needs this may range from a few hundred pounds to several

Page 25

thousand pounds. This can add up to much greater amounts if the child needs a
specialist or residential placement. Academies receive the same funding but
from the Education and Skills Funding Agency rather than the Local Authority.
4.3 To illustrate this complexity with a practical example:
Child A’s EHCP states that he will have 25 hours a week of 1:1 TA support from a
teaching assistant.
The EHCP identifies that Child A will be placed at a mainstream secondary school.
Thus:
25 hours of 1:1 TA support (including all employer-related costs)
Total: £26,000
Funding would break down in this way:
• Element 1 funding £5,000
• Element 2 funding £6,000
• Element 3 from the LA paid through the High Needs budget £15,000
4.4 There are challenges for schools from this nationally agreed model. For example, where
they have high numbers of children and young people with EHCPs and they have to find
the first £6,000 of provision for all those who may have additional needs.
4.5 What does this mean for our schools?
o

An example, a mainstream primary school with 200 pupils may have a notional
SEND budget of £52,000. If they have 5 pupils with EHCPs then £30,000 of that
notional budget is already assigned before any further spending can be
distributed.

o

This leaves £22,000 within the notional budget to provide support for the any of
the remaining children who have or may have additional needs. The expectation
is that any other children would be able to access provision up to £6,000 each.
The average national rate for SEND support in primary school is just above 12%
so that would equate to 24 pupils in our example school. This would result in an
average of only £916 per identified pupil per year in additional spend. Any
additional spending would put place additional pressure on other areas of the
school budget. For example, a new child undergoing a needs assessment and
being granted an ECHP would require the first £6,000 to be funded from the
school. Reducing further the school’s ability to meet the other needs of the
children in the school.

o

In a similar mainstream primary with 200 pupils and a similar demographic they
may have a notional SEND budget of £48,000. If they have only 1 pupil with an
EHCPs then £6,000 of that notional budget is already assigned leaving £42,000
to provide for the other additional provision that is needed. This would result in an
average of £1,750 per identified pupil per year in additional spend.

4.6 Within North Tyneside we have schools that are impacted both positively and negatively
by this national approach to funding. Where this is creating specific issues for schools
and settings officers work with leaders to find pragmatic solutions however, there is no

Page 26

flexibility built into the nationally agreed model. This is also limited by the available
funding which, as noted, is facing significant pressure.
5. Update on SEND Support, attendance and exclusion
5.1 In general, attendance in the autumn term 2020/2021 showed improvement at 2.88%,
which was a positive picture for half terms 1 & 2, and better than 4.93% absence in
19/20 over the same period. This also compares well to North East absence for the
same period of 3.57% and with national at 3.68%. For young people with additional
needs the trends and patterns follow the general picture.
5.2 The absence rate for children and young people at a SEND Support level is slightly
higher than for those without identified need but lower for those with an EHCP.
5.3 Local authority officers from the school support team alongside early help practitioners
had prepared well to work with school colleagues and tackle absenteeism, following the
disrupted summer term of 2019/2020 academic year. Systems were established so
schools could refer families causing concern. All referrals were triaged, and wider
support provided for a better return to school. This included all children and young
people and where additional needs were identified the relevant teams were made aware.
Unfortunately, despite best efforts the spring term was spent almost completely in
lockdown, which makes it difficult for data comparisons. We do know that between a
third and half of all pupils continued to attend school during this period under the
category of vulnerable, including those with EHCPs, or key worker pupils. This was
much higher than rates seen during first lock down.
5.4 The summer term became increasingly difficult as the impact of increasing COVID
infections and contact tracing affected schools. Such was the extent of the problem that
48 North Tyneside schools were classified in outbreak as the term ended. There are no
good national comparisons yet to determined what the impact of repeated school closure
has been on North Tyneside schools and their pupils including those with additional
needs. Whilst the first part of the autumn term has been more settled, we are beginning
to see infection rates rise again in our schools.
5.5 We await to see what the long-term impact will be on pupils’ attendance in school
because of the pandemic. We know that there was an increase in the proportion of
pupils electively home education rising from 90 in 2019/2020 to 112 in 2020/2021 a 23%
increase. Within this group we have seen a slight reduction in the number of children
and young people with Education Health and Care plans from 14 to 12. This is a group
we monitor closely. We have also noted that 15 of the current group of electively home
educated children and young people were previously seen has having some level of
additional needs (see figure 9).
Figure 9: shows the number of
children and young people with
EHCPs who are being electively
home educated overtime.

Page 27

5.6 As reported above attendance in the last 12 months has ben impacted by Covid-19,
school closures, and the impact of governmanet gudielines. Also as noted above, the
rates for absences are fairly consistent between groups but with SEND support being
slighter hihger than non-SEND and EHCP being slightly lower.
5.7 Within North Tyneside our numbers and rates of permanent exclusions are generally
low, and this is reflected in the cohorts of children and young people with SEND. The
general trend for exclusions has been rising overtime but is still below the national
average. The ‘keeping children in school’ agenda has been a cornerstone of the
partnership work between the local authority and schools for several years. Figure 10
(below) shows the general trend for pupils with no identified additional needs.

Figure 10: the general
trend for permanent
exclusions for pupils with
no identified additional
needs

5.8 For children and young people who are identified as needing SEND support the
picture reflects the national trend, albeit within a different time scale with North
Tyneside’s numbers ‘lagging behind’ what is seen nationally. This is shown in figure
11 (below). It is also notable that in 2019/20 the North Tyneside rate when above the
national trend. This is being monitored closely and when more comparative data is
available, we will understand the impact of actions undertaken by schools.
Permanent Exclusions trend for pupils with
SEN Support

North Tyneside: SEN Support

2020-21

2019-20

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

2013-14

2012-13

2011-12

2010-11

2009-10

2008-09

2007-08

0.50
0.40
0.30
0.20
0.10
0.00

2006-07

Figure 11: permanent
exclusion trend for pupils
at SEND support level.

England: SEN Support

5.9 Permanent exclusions for children and young people with EHCPs are rare nationally
and locally. Low numbers can suggest a wider issue. Whilst, where possible, we
would seek to prevent a permanent exclusion, there are times when this is
unavoidable. Whilst there would appear to be a recent peak in 2020/21, this reflects 2
young people. Figure 12 (below) shows this trend over time.

Page 28

Figure 11: permanent
exclusion trend for pupils
at EHCP level.

5.10 Suspensions (until recently these have been referred to as ‘fixed term exclusions’)
are, over time, low compared to national figures. Whilst the rates have seen a general
upward trend the figures in North Tyneside, we did not see the same ‘dramatic’ drop in
2019/20 that was seen nationally. We continue to monitor this carefully with our
schools and there is ongoing work to support and challenge in this aspect of our work
including developing a more consistent offer across the different age ranges to keep
our children and young people in their local schools. Figures 12, 13 and 14 (below)
show the suspensions trends for children and young people with no identified SEND,
those at SEND support and those with an EHCP.
Suspensions trend for pupils with no SEN
4.00
3.50
3.00
2.50
2.00
1.50
1.00
0.50
0.00

North Tyneside: No SEN

Suspensions trend for pupils with SEN Support
20.00
15.00
10.00
5.00

North Tyneside: SEN Support

Page 29

2020-21

2019-20

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2014-15

2013-14

2012-13

2011-12

2010-11

2009-10

2008-09

2007-08

0.00

2006-07

Figure 13: the general
trend for suspension for
pupils identified as
SEND support

England: No SEN

2015-16

Figure 12: the general
trend for suspension for
pupils with no identified
additional needs

England: SEN Support

Suspensions trend for pupils with EHCPs
25.00
20.00
15.00
10.00
5.00

North Tyneside: SEN EHCP

Page 30

England: SEN EHCP

2020-21

2019-20

2018-19

2017-18

2016-17

2015-16

2014-15

2013-14

2012-13

2011-12

2010-11

2009-10

2008-09

2007-08

0.00

2006-07

Figure 14: the general
trend for suspension for
pupils with an education,
health and care plan

